

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT HELD JANUARY 14, 2019 AT 2:00 P.M.

Pursuant to posted notice, the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District was held on Monday, January 14th at 2 p.m., at 13977 Milam Rd., Colorado Springs, CO.

In attendance were Directors:

Gregg Cawlfield Bill Heeter Ecton Espenlaub Lynn Shepherd

Also, in attendance were:

Jamie Adams, Warren Management Kevin Walker, Walker Schooler District Managers Kristina Kulick, Walker Schooler District Managers Michelle Atkinson John Kelley

- 1. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 1:58 p.m.
- <u>2. Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/Reaffirmation of Disclosures:</u> President Heeter confirmed a quorum. Mr. Walker explained the Reaffirmation of Disclosures and the Conflicts of Interest. Mr. Walker said he will have them prepared for the next meeting.
- 3. Approval of the Agenda: Director Espenlaub moved to approve the Agenda; seconded by Director Shepherd. Motion passed unanimously. President Heeter said he would like to change the order of the meeting a little bit, and he explained how he included the definition of discussion and decisions required on the Agenda items.
- 4. Public Comment: Mr. Kelley said he would like to discuss the purpose of the Lodge in the community. He feels the Lodge belongs to the residents and should not be a commercial enterprise; that the Lodge rules should not be different between residents and non-residents, but residents should be able to rent at a reasonable rate and there should be more encouragement for residents, so it becomes a community resource. Mr. Kelley felt that charges should reflect expenses and long-term capital requirements and that he supports the Board dedicating time to work on this issue. Mr. Kelley suggested looking to trade expenses between the HOA and Metro District. President Heeter said a big issue is the turnover on both Boards and there is also a new HOA President as of last month. Mr. Kelley

said he thinks it should go beyond the members of the Board. There should be subcommittees and the Board should enlist help from the community. Director Shepherd described the struggle to get community members to work on issues and asked Mr. Kelley his opinion on the best way to inform residents; Mr. Kelley said email is most effective. Mr. Kelley said the periodic newsletter is helpful. Mr. Kelley asked about the experience with Director interviews; Director Shepherd said she was interviewed and Director Cawlfield noted they did not have interviews when it was a developer board.

<u>5. Approval of the December 10, 2018 Meeting Minutes:</u> Director Espenlaub and President Heeter identified corrections to the minutes. Director Shepherd moved to approve the amended December 10, 2018 minutes; seconded by Director Cawlfield. Motion passed unanimously.

6. Management Matters:

a. Lodge Rental Agreement/Process Review: Director Shepherd explained that she contacted Mrs. Atkinson and discussed the needed improvements to the Lodge to remain competitive. Mrs. Atkinson noted that a preference for a more groomed landscape has been commented on in her showings and possibly a handicapped ramp for access to the pond area. Hours of operation with the earliest start time at 8 a.m. and closing at 12 a.m. was working. Director Shepherd said the contract needs to be updated and noted the hours are not in the contract; Mrs. Atkinson said she verbally informs renters of the hours. Mr. Walker suggested that the refund process should also be added to the contract. President Heeter asked when the contract was last changed. Mrs. Atkinson said the most recent contract change regarded allowing dogs only for the ceremony and that they must be on leash. Mrs. Atkinson said the internet is working great and the stereo system is fine except when a DJ is employed but when people just use their phones, they don't have a problem. Director Espenlaub suggested taking photos of the fireplace and sound setup to assist in the management of those items; Mrs. Atkinson said she will take a picture of everything this weekend. Mrs. Atkinson discussed having microphones reset as that is out of the facility manager's scope. Director Shepherd discussed other contract suggestions including - addressing certain equipment and supplies such as tables; requiring an arbitration process for disputes (the Board agreed that this was acceptable); consolidating the resident and non-resident contracts; changes to the fees; changing the tour of the facility; deposits and refund policies; use of credit cards for payments and establishing a process for that service; the use of credit cards for cleaning charges and extra hours charges; authority for the event manager to close down the activity if there are problems; overnight parking and other parking issues; cleaning charges; and hours of operation.

Mrs. Atkinson noted the raising of rates and more restrictions may reduce the booking opportunities. The Board discussed fewer events with higher prices and other issues would necessitate a workshop soon. Director Shepherd stated that she would distribute the changes she was recommending to the contract and President Heeter recommended having an attorney look at the final revisions.

Mrs. Atkinson asked for permission to allow a ceremony on the area of the pond near the road and the Board agreed that was acceptable.

President Heeter recommended eliminating the free, no charge events in the future. Director Espenlaub moved to have the contract amendment define charges for all events

- defined as including standard events, resident events, and HOA sponsored events; seconded by Director Shepherd. Motion passed unanimously.
- b. Speed Limit Update: Director Espenlaub said that he confirmed the speed limit is 35 mph outside of the community including Milam from Shoup to the circle, and the speed limit is 25 mph on all other roads within the community. Director Espenlaub said he will check to see if there were 25 mph signs in the shed to put near Fox Chase leaving the roundabout and have them put up. President Heeter said the speed limit update should be in the newsletter. Director Cawlfield suggested cutting a trail in on the south and west side of Milam to help with safety. Mr. Walker was directed to review this possibility of a trail along Milam.
- c. Quotes for Lodge Furnace Replacement: Ms. Adams presented the Fountain Valley bid for \$7,895 for 2 furnaces to the Board. She said the mold repair is scheduled for March 4, 2019. President Heeter moved to approve the bid from Fountain Valley for 2 furnaces; seconded by Director Espenlaub. Motion passed unanimously.
- d. Request from HOA for Funding Assistance: President Heeter explained the HOA is running a deficit since 2011 and additional revenue sources were not available. The HOA requests that the Metro District pick up the expenses for the chipping program. Mr. Walker reported there may be service plan restrictions regarding District payment for this and he would ask the attorney for advice. Director Cawlfield asked if the Metro District could take over trash collection services; Ms. Adams said they would have to amend all the governing documents. Director Shepherd said she is okay with helping the HOA where we can whether it be trash or chipping. Mr. Walker said the Metro District could manage and enforce covenants if it is allowed in the service plan. They could ask for an amendment to the service plan to have the Metro District take that over and then the Metro District would pay the legal fees for management. Mr. Walker added it would cost \$4,000 to have the County review the service plan and we would need to have legal counsel. Mr. Walker said he will look at the service plan and confirm whether the District can take over the chipping.
- e. Update on GOCO Grant Process: Mr. Walker updated the Board and said GOCO gave a grant to the County that did not include community trails. Mr. Walker reported the next grant deadline was October 2019 and that the District may apply for two grant programs. President Heeter moved to pursue a GOCO grant for 2020 for trails, seconded by Director Shepherd. Motion passed unanimously.
- f. Update on Parcel Boxes: President Heeter reported that the Postal Service will not pay for parcel boxes without an explanation. The Board discussed that the developer paid for the original boxes. President Heeter said he wants to know if we need to have the parcel boxes approved by USPS, but he is waiting to ask until he hears back from Ms. Talbert. Mr. Walker projected the cost of the pads and two boxes is approximately \$5,500 to \$6,000. President Heeter clarified that the community has enough mail boxes, but not enough for parcel deliveries. President Heeter said he will talk with the postal carrier to see how many boxes would be reasonable.
- g. Update on Ordering and Posting "Dogs Must Be Controlled" Signs: Mr. Walker said the signs as requested are \$85 each for the sign plus pole and labor. He noted there are

cheaper signs on Amazon. Director Shepherd asked if the rule has been officially changed yet, and recommends not changing the signs until it is official. Director Cawlfield suggested putting signs on the existing trailhead sign's posts. Director Cawlfield moved to approve the purchase of 20 signs, seconded by President Heeter. Motion passed unanimously. Mr. Walker will order the signs. Mr. Kelley asked about the reasoning behind ordering the signs. The Board explained issues with dogs off leashes and instances of dog attacks. Mr. Kelley said he cannot understand spending \$1,500 for signs that may not solve the problem. Director Cawlfield explained the County could then come out and enforce it and write tickets and monitor. Director Shepherd said it also limits exposure and liability. Director Cawlfield also explained the homeowners whose lots have trails running through them and that they are having to deal with dogs on their property.

- h. Auction of Storage Shed Miscellaneous Items: President Heeter said he would like to have permission from the Board to get rid of the truck that is out there and deal with the auction items in the Spring. Director Shepherd asked if we could donate it. Director Espenlaub moved to have President Heeter handle the removal of the truck; seconded by Director Cawlfield. Motion passed unanimously. Mr. Walker will get the title.
- i. Responsibility for Managing Flag at Central Monument: President Heeter noted the monument flag is not being monitored and he noticed that after President Bush's death, it was not lowered to half-mast. Director Shepherd suggested asking a VFW in the community if they would be interested.
- j. Legal Representation for 2019: President Heeter noted the discussion about Mr. Susemihl's contract from the December 10th meeting and asked Mr. Walker to speak with Mr. Susemihl.
- k. Update on HOA: This item was discussed under Agenda item 6d.

7. Management Matters

- a. Acceptance of Unaudited Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018, the Schedule of Cash Position Updated as of December 31, 2018 and Bank Statements: Director Espenlaub requested postponing the approval for next month so he has time to review. The Board agreed to postpone the approval of the unaudited financial statements.
- b. Approval of Payables for the Period Ending January 11, 2019: Mr. Walker presented the financials and payables to the Board. The Board discussed the price of a land line phone for the Lodge. Director Shepherd explained voice over internet protocol (VOIP). The Board decided to get instructions for internet calling to the facility manager. President Heeter moved to approve the Payables; seconded by Director Shepherd. Motion passed unanimously.

Director Shepherd asked if Mr. Walker gets paperwork from Mrs. Atkinson on the facility managers. Mr. Walker said he has been working on getting information on what she does and his office has taken over payments from Mrs. Atkinson. As far as contractors, he has been working on getting the job description of the facility managers and how they are being paid. Director Shepherd expressed concerns on the management of the Lodge during events, especially after the issue with the refund and complaint.

Mrs. Atkinson works with the independent contractors on scheduling for events. Mr. Walker clarified they sign contracts that state they are independent contractors to remove liability of workers comp. Director Cawlfield asked why we do not have a contract with Mrs. Atkinson. Mr. Walker said he has tried to get a contract for her in the past. Mr. Walker confirmed he has the contracts for Lodge events now.

Director Cawlfield asked about cameras for the Lodge. Mr. Walker said he has cameras and they will be installed next week. The footage will be recorded and stored in the cloud moving forward once they are installed.

c. 2019 Capital Spending Plan Discussion: President Heeter suggested discussing this item in March.

8. Legal Matters

a. Board Vacancy Update: President Heeter discussed that Mr. Sanjay and Mr. Kelley have both submitted letters of interest and interviews will be scheduled with them. Ms. Adams said she will send President Heeter the interview questions. President Heeter

Gregg Cawlfield, Assistant Secretary

| said they will have recommendations for the | Board at the next meeting. |
|---|---------------------------------------|
| 9. Other Business a. Next Meeting: February 11, 2019 | |
| 10. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 4:56 p.m. | |
| Respectfully Submitted, | |
| By: Kevin Walker, District Manager | |
| THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT BY TBELOW: | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Bill Heeter, President | |
| Lynn Shepherd, Vice President | |
| Ecton Espenlaub, Treasurer | |

Vacant, Director